ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMIVERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 28, 2008
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l menbers present

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 315
"An Act extending the termnation date of +the Big Gne
Commerci al Services Board; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 315 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 320

"An Act relating to certification of search and rescue personnel
and organi zations; requiring certain search and rescue personnel
to be considered state enployees for purposes of workers

conpensati on coverage; and allowing municipalities to elect to
provi de workers' conpensation insurance coverage for search and
rescue personnel."”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 315

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND Bl G GAME COMVERCI AL SERVI CES BOARD
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDCET & AUDI T

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2008



01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H L&C, FIN
01/ 28/ 08 (H L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 320
SHORT TITLE: SEARCH & RESCUE: CERTI FI CATI ON/ WORK. COVP
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) L&C, FIN
01/ 28/ 08 (H) L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

LI NDA HAY, Staff

To Representative Ral ph Sanuel s

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 315 to the commttee.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

D vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments on the audit for the Big
Game Commercial Services Board (BGCSB) during the discussion of
HB 315.

PAUL JOHNSON, Chair

Big Game Commercial Services Board (BGCSB)

Elfin Cove, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to
guestions during discussion of HB 315.

JENNI FER STRI CKLER, Chi ef
Pr of essi onal Licensing, Juneau O fice
Departnment of Commerce, Community, & Economic Devel opnent

( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to

guestions during discussion of HB 315.

Rl CHARD ROHRER, Guide-CQutfitter Menber

Big Ganme Commercial Services Board (BGCSB)

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided coments and responded to
guestions during discussion of HB 315.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -2- January 28, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 320, presented the bil
and responded to questions.

M KE PAW.OABKI , St aff

To Representative Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TION  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behal f of
Representati ve Kevin Meyer on HB 320.

RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant; Deputy Comrander

A Det achnent

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers (AST)

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions on HB 320.

CORY Al ST, President

Al aska Search and Rescue Associ ati on (ASARA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during discussion of HB
320.

CHUCK SPRI NGER, Past Presi dent

Al aska Search and Rescue Associ ati on ( ASARA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded comments during discussion of HB
320.

PAUL LI SANKIE, Director

Central Ofice

Di vision of Wirkers’ Conpensation

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
320.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:02:48 PM Representatives Buch,
Neurman, Ranras, and O son were present at the call to order.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2008



Representatives Ledoux, Gardner, and Gatto arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 315- EXTEND Bl G GAME COWMERCI AL SERVI CES BOARD

3:03: 00 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 315, "An Act extending the termnation date of
the Big Game Commrercial Services Board; and providing for an
effective date.”

3:03:15 PM

LI NDA HAY, Staff to Representative Ral ph Sanuels, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, explained that HB 315 was introduced by the
Legi slative Budget and Audit Commttee and would extend the
sunset date of the Big Game Commercial Services Board (BGCSB)
until June 30, 2012, which conplies with the D vision of
Legislative Audit which recently reviewed the activities of the
BGCSB. She said that Pat Davidson, Legislative Auditor, wll
wal k the committee through the findings and reconmendati ons of
the audit.

3:03:40 PM

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Al aska State Legislature, explained that the audit report

recoomended the following statutory change: to extend the
termnation date to 2012, which is a four-year extension of the
BGCSB. She noted that oftentines an audit wll recommend

extending a board for eight years, but since the BGCSB was
reconstituted only a ~couple of years ago, the auditor
recommended extending the board only four years. That
recommendation allows the auditors to review how well the BGCSB
is functioning in four years and to address any issues earlier
The other issues identified in the audit were admnistrative
issues that needed to be dealt wth by the Dvision of
Cccupational Licensing, Departnment of Commerce, Community, &
Econom ¢ Devel opnent ( DCCED) . She said that no deficiencies
surfaced with the BGCSB

3:04:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH asked Ms. Davidson to review the first three
finding and recommendations as listed on page 9 of the audit.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2008



M5. DAVIDSON reviewed the findings and recomendations and
stated that the audit recommends that the Division of
Cor porations, Business, and Professional Licensing should be
certain that its staff assigned to the BGCSB adheres to statute,
regul ations, and policy and procedures for efficient support of
the BGCSB s day-to-day operations. She noted that sonme of the

licensing files were missing certain docunents. She expl ai ned
that generally the auditor examines files for conpleteness and
follows-up on any deficiencies. In this case, the audit
identified that the Ilicensing examner needs to gather and
conpile additional information for the individual |[|icensing
files. Wth regard to the second recomendation, the audit

revealed that one examnation did not have adequate public
noti ce. Wiile the aforenentioned is a problem if a person is
sitting for an exam he/she is not generally going to rely
solely on the public notice of the exam nation for information

Al though the audit revealed public noticing as a deficiency that
should be addressed, it was not of substantial concern to the
auditor, she related. The third finding was that the proposed
regul ations issued by the BGCSB were not issued in a tinely

manner . She said the auditor found that the |icensing support
for this board was not “up to snuff”. Although staff attenpted
to public notice the regulations and put them in draft form
they did not follow the right sequence. Normal |y these itens

individually would not warrant a recommendation, but taken as a
whole, the auditor found the deficiencies were significant
enough to warrant a recommendati on to DCCED

3:07:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH inquired as to whether these issues have
been resolved to the auditor’s sati sfaction.

MS. DAVI DSON answered that DCCED responded that it woul d address
the i ssues, and did nmake sonme staff changes.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN requested that M. Davidson explain the
recommendation to review |icensing fees.

M5. DAVIDSON explained that the BGCSB is required to be
financially supported by its fees. The auditor found that the
costs of operating the board exceeded its incomng revenues.
Wil e the auditor does not recommend which particular fee should
be addressed, the auditor does identify that the revenues need
to be increased. She explained that is up to the division to
ensure that the fees are sufficient; however, the division

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- January 28, 2008



usually works with the board to determ ne which fees should be
i ncreased.

3:09:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to whether fee increases wll
mean an increase in hunting license fees.

M5. DAVIDSON said that the fees are license fees generated by
master guide-outfitters, registered guide-outfitters, Cass A
assistant guide-outfitters, and assistant guide-outfitters. The
sport hunting and fishing |license fees and do not support the
BGCSB, but are deposited into the Fish and Gane Fund.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked who currently serves on the state
| ands subconmm ttee of the BGCSB.

MS. DAVI DSON sai d she did not know.
3:10: 29 PM

PAUL JOHNSON, Chair, Big Gane Commercial Services Board (BGCSB),
stated that the primary nenber of the BGCSB State Lands
subconmittee is Robert Fithian. The State Lands subconmttee
was fornmed by the BGCSB to identify and address probl ens guide-
outfitters had encountered on state lands and to nake
recommendations to the board. He said the subcommttee
identified sone ethical issues that the BGCSB dealt with and M.
Fithian has been working wth the Departnent of Natural
Resources (DNR) to resol ve other issues.

MR. JOHNSON, in response to a question by Representative Neunan,
said that the State Lands Subconmittee was established by the
BGCSB and is charged to identify problens and coordinate its
efforts with state agenci es. He noted that M. Fithian has had
maj or discussions wth the Departnment of Natural Resources
( DNR) .

3:12:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked nore specifically about the work
done by the state | ands subconmm ttee.

VR. JOHNSON further responded that when the BGCSB was
reactivated a couple of years ago, a nunber of guide-outfitters
who guide-outfit on state |lands conplained that the permtting
process and rules are conplex. He added that while the BGCSB

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2008



would like to take action to address the issues identified, the
BGCSB | acks the statutory authority to do so.

3:13:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for clarification of t he
recommendation that reconmmends that the board cease the
electronic accumulation of information gathered from hunt
records and transporter reports. He opined that sonmetinmes it is
best to not collect information because it is just stored and is
unusabl e i nformation.

V5. DAVI DSON expl ained that the auditor’s role is to control and
verify data, and therefore the recomendation was highly
unusual . However, prior to the reinstatenent of the BGCSB, the
Division of Legislative Audit found that DCCED was keeping
enormous anounts of records that only the auditor ever asked to
use. She said that the auditor reviewed the anmpbunt of effort
involved to conpile the data, and while nmany people thought
[certain individuals] were using the data, it seenmed that no one
was using the data. She noted that DCCED disagrees with this
recommendation, and therefore the recommendation is designed to
have DCCED identify its wusers to ensure that the data is
mai ntained in a useable format for the users. She rel ated that
the auditor found BGCSB staff in the process of keypunching very
old hunt records. Wiile that data might not have been used
because it was not previously available, considerable efforts
were being taken to enter the data. She suggested that perhaps
a digitized hunt record with a searchable data base m ght be
used. However, until the users are identified, DCCED staff
should not invest a lot of tinme and energy into the data entry
effort, she opined.

3:15: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH referred to a letter in the conmttee packet
and asked whet her soneone was present to speak to the request by
Conmi ssioner Notti that DCCED be allowed to retain the
information [contained in hunt records].

MS. DAVIDSON reiterated that the recommendation is based on the
fact that no one uses the records. |f users can be identified,
the division is not opposed to the data bei ng coll ected.

3:16: 42 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2008



JENNI FER  STRI CKLER, Chi ef, Pr of essi onal Li censi ng, Juneau
Ofice, Depart ment of Commer ce, Communi ty, & Econom c
Devel opnment (DCCED), related that the specific requirenent to
collect the data has been a statutory requirement for rmany
years. She explained that guide-outfitters mnust submt a
financial remuneration form for each hunt, which is by statute a
confidential report that represents the guide/client contract.
She explained that the requirement for the report remains in
statute, and thus DCCED continues to collect the data. The data
is used primarily by law enforcenent agencies, particularly by

the Departnment of Public Safety enforcenent officers. There
does not seem to be wi despread interest outside |aw enforcenent
agency requests for the hunt records, she noted. She outlined

the process a licensing exam ner follows when a trooper requests
copies of hunt data, and that the Division of Corporations,
Busi ness, and Professional Licensing (DCBPL) has been short
staffed so that only one licensing staff assigned to the BGCSB
is available to conpile and certify copies of the hunt data.

Since staff’'s primary duties include issuing licenses and
preparing for exam nations, the BGCSB staff has not been able to
provide hunt record information in a tinmely manner. She said

that the division is in the process of entering the data in an
electronic format so that troopers and other enforcenent
agencies will be able to do their own queries and downl oad the
specific reports. She explained that the DCCED has reduced its
backlog and has conpleted the data entry for transporter
activity forms from 1993 to 2007. She noted that the division
is currently entering guide-outfitter hunt records for 2007, and
wi || work backwards year-by-year to capture the earlier data.

3:19: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH inquired as to whether other states mmintain
detail ed hunt records.

MS. STRICKLER said she was not sure. The state and federa
wildlife officers support the division’s efforts to nmaintain the
hunt records, she rel ated.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that whether to extend the
BGCSB is the matter before the conmttee. She expressed support
to extend the BGCSB

CHAIR OLSON noted that the only the only matter before the

commttee with respect to HB 315 is to extend the BGCSB until
2012.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2008



M5. DAVI DSON expl ai ned that extending the sunset date in HB 315
is only matter that currently requires a statutory change. The
auditor’s report provided neets a statutory requirenent for the
Division of Legislative Audit, which examines a variety of
i ssues pertaining to the BGCSB. She noted that if the auditors
had found substanti al ongoi ng probl ens, they would nake
recommendations for statutory changes as renedies. In this
instance, the recomendations are nore for the conmttee’'s
information to better understand how the board functions and how
well the staff supports the board functions. She noted the
audit recommends a four-year extension of the board, and it also
highlights some areas that are necessary to inprove the
adm ni strative activities of the board.

3:22: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if anyone has requested the data
now that it is accessible. She further asked whether requests
are for data in the 1980s or for nore recent year's hunts.

M5. STRICKLER responded that other agencies have expressed
interest in hunt records. In fact, there are a few pending
requests, including ones from federal enforcenent officers and
the DPS officers in Fairbanks. She highlighted that any agency
requesting the information nust have a secure web site in order
to access the information. As far as the data entry, DCCED has
asked the BGCSB whether it can cut off at a certain date. Some
agencies have also offered to offset the costs of data entry,
but thus far the division has yet to fornulate a specific fee
for accessing the data, although it remains a possibility.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER added that perhaps charging a fee would
help to offset the $55,000 deficit of the BGCSB, and inquired as
to whether the records need to go back as far as 15-20 years.

3:25:02 PM

M5. DAVIDSON, responded to a question by Representative Gatto
whet her the board nenbership was |opsided, answered that wth
respect to the nunmber of public nmenbers on the board vis-a-vis
the nunber of guide-outfitters serving on the board, that nost
occupational licensing boards have a majority nenbership of
I icensed professionals to represent the board.

3: 25: 58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- January 28, 2008



MR. JOHNSON stated that, in his view, the 10-year gap w thout a
board did not help the industry, although in sonme ways it was a
heal t hy process. He noted that guide-outfitting is a $200
mllion industry for the state. In response to an earlier
guestion about hunt records, he recommended that the division
mai ntain at |east three years of back records. He offered that
the nine-nmenber board consists of two nenbers who are private
| andhol ders, two nenbers who are transporters, two nenbers who
are registered guides, [two] who are public nenbers, and one
menber who serves on the Board of Gane and functions as a
I iaison between the BGCSB and the Board of Gane. He asked the
committee to support extending the BGCSB until 2012.

3:27:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to whether a person needs a
transporter’s license to transport gane by air. For i nstance,
woul d a constituent who lives near Skwentna and hunts, need a
transporter’s license.

MR. JOHNSON answered that there is not a specific requirenent
for a transporter’s license in order to transport game by air.
However, if the person who is transporting game is conpensated,
then he/she nust hold a conmercial operator’s certificate issued
by the Federal Aviation Admnistration (FAA) under Part 135,
which allows an operator to charge nore than a point-to-point
fee. The operator would also have to have a transporter’s
license. He noted there have not been any recent changes to the
transporter requirenments. He gave a history of the BGCSB, which
he said stenmed from a task force chaired by Henry Springer that
was created in 1991, when the Guide Board was changed to the
BGCSB. The BGCSB sunset happened in 1995 over a litany of
i ssues, but nothing has changed since 1991 in terns of
qualifications, he stated.

3:29:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVMAN posed an exanple in which he hunted with
his friend in Skwentna. He asked whether the friend would be
required to have a transporter’s license in order to haul his
gear or transport his noose.

MR. JOHNSON specified that if the constituent is paid for his
services, he would be required to have a transporter’s |icense.
He outlined the requirenments for a transporter license, which
i ncl ude: an application, f ees, activity reports, and
docunent ati on whet her he/she provides air services and holds a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- January 28, 2008



comercial operator’s certificate issued by the Federal Aviation
Adm ni stration (FAA) under Part 135, and proof of insurance.

3:30: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to whether soneone would be
issued a citation for transporting game w thout a |license.

MR, JOHNSON answered yes, and added that several people have
been cited for not followng the reporting requirenments under
state statute.

3:31:37 PM

RICHARD ROHRER, Big Ganme Conmercial Services Board (BGCSB)
Quide-Qutfitter board nenber, encouraged the commttee to
reaut hori ze the BGCSB. He explained that the BGCSB nenbers work
wel | together and that he is avail able to answer questi ons.

3:32:13 PM

CHAI R OLSON upon determ ning no one else wished to testify on HB
315 closed the public testinony.

3:32:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report HB 315 out of the House
Labor and Commer ce St andi ng Commttee wth i ndi vi dual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There bei ng

no objection, HB 315 was reported from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmitt ee.

3:32:46 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from3:32 p.m to 3:35 p.m

HB 320- SEARCH & RESCUE: CERTI FI CATI ON WORK. COVP

3:35:31 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 320, "An Act relating to certification of search
and rescue personnel and organizations; requiring certain search
and rescue personnel to be considered state enployees for
pur poses of workers' conpensati on coverage; and allow ng
municipalities to elect to provide workers' conpensati on
i nsurance coverage for search and rescue personnel."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- January 28, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking
as the prinme sponsor, explained that HB 320 addresses providing
wor ker s’ conpensation for search and rescue volunteers.
Al askans live here to enjoy and explore the w |l derness, although
exploring can be a bit dangerous and sonetines people needed to
be rescued, he renarked. He highlighted that search and rescue

volunteers are often the first responders. In the past six
years, search and rescue volunteers and the Alaska State
Troopers (AST) rescued nore than 2,300 people. Si nce many
search and rescue personnel are volunteers and are not
conpensated for their efforts, it seens that the |east the

| egislature can do is to provide them with workers’ conpensation
in case they are injured in the course of rescuing or attenpting
to rescue others, he opined. He noted that currently vol unteer
energency nedical technicians (EMIS) are covered under workers

conpensation and HB 320 would extend the sane workers’
conpensati on coverage to search and rescue volunteers. Since it
is inportant to nake sure these are legitinmate organizations, he
rel ayed that he asked the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) to
oversee and certify the organizations and to set the standards
for certification in regulation. Through that process the
groups will have an opportunity to provide input.

3:38: 14 PM
M KE PAWOWBKI, Staff to Representative Kevin Myer, Al aska

State Legislature, in response to a question by Representative
Ranras, confirnmed that the State of Al aska is self-insured.

3:38:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to whether there have been
many instances of volunteer workers suing the state. She
explained that although it is not explicitly specified in the
bill, providing workers’ conpensation services would renove the
search and rescue volunteer’s right to sue the state for civil
damages. She inquired as to whether the bill stemmed from a
 awsui t .

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ained that a constituent requested the
bill because the constituent participates in a search and rescue
organi zation. He noted that a |l awsuit has not yet arisen.

MR. PAW.OWSKI further responded that AS 18.60.125 specifically
provides civil imunity to the state. He offered to provide the
committee with a copy of the statute. He said that the
di scussion for HB 320 is about being proactive and acting prior

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- January 28, 2008



to a search and rescue person being involved in an accident.
Furthernore, the bill wmy curb what mght happen to the
volunteer pool if volunteers were to realize they are not
covered by workers’ conpensation if injured while performng
search and rescue vol unteer work.

3:40:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX surm sed that since there is already civil
i munity, HB 320 woul d not have a negative inpact to the state.

MR. PAW.OMNBKI answered that he believes that’s the case.
3:40: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to whether volunteers are
consi dered state enployees while on search and rescue m ssions.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER answered yes, just during the volunteer
wor k.

3:41: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO related a scenario in which a person is a
| aborer who earns $50 per hour and hurts his back while
perform ng search and rescue volunteer activities such that he
can no longer work as a l|laborer. He asked how that person would
be treated under HB 320.

3:41: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS referred to page 2, line 15 proposed [AS
23.30.238(b), which refers to the earnings cal cul ation].

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER concurred with Representative Ranras that
there is a method in HB 320 for <calculating the state’s
exposur e.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO related his belief that the state would be
responsible for rehabilitation and training for a new job. | f
it is a situation in which the new job does not pay conparable
to the | aborer position, what woul d happen, he asked.

3:42: 59 PM

MR. PAW.OABKI explained that it is a policy call as to how much
coverage to pay a volunteer injured while participating in a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- January 28, 2008



m ssion or a training exercise. He said HB 320 puts the injured
volunteer in line with an EMI"s sal ary. He also said there are
volunteer firefighters, disaster volunteers, and several other
places within the workers’ conpensation statutes that could be
examined to determne the level of coverage. He noted that
there is a representative from the Departnment of Labor &
Wor kf orce Devel opnent that mght be able to assist the commttee
in making that policy call. In further response to
Representative Gatto, M. Paw owski related his understanding
that death benefits are included in the workers’ conpensation
st at ut es.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted his agreenent.
3:44: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that currently the state covers
EMIs, firefighters, volunteer anbulance attendants, and police
of ficers under workers’ conpensation. She asked if volunteer
anbul ance attendants receive formal training or certification.
She expressed concern about adding a layer of certification for
vol unteers who aren’t professionally enployed in related fields.
She inquired as to DPS s opinion of HB 320. She al so asked if
t he Al aska nmountain rescue group has been consulted.

REPRESENTATIVE MEYER related the desire for those various
[volunteer] groups to be approved by DPS so that they are
qualified and trained vol unteers.

MR. PAW.OWASKI explained that DPS and the Al aska Search and
Rescue Association (ASARA), an unbrella group, have been
cont act ed. One option being discussed is whether the DPS m ght
prefer to certify the groups rather than its individual nenbers
and | eave the training to the individual nenbers. He noted that
many vol unteer groups work in conjunction with the DPS during
search and rescue m ssions. In further response to
Representative Gardner, M. Pawl owski answered that he was not
sure what the specific criteria are for volunteer anbul ance
attendants. He offered to get back to the commttee on that.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether there is a role

for the non-professional citizen volunteer, who is not
interested in a certification program to help. If so, is the
bill an inpedinent to that activity, she asked.

MR. PAW.OAMSKI recalling discussions with different groups said
he didn't believe HB 320 would be an inpedinent. Cover age

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- January 28, 2008



should occur for volunteers participating during a sanctioned
event by the DPS.

3:48: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER expressed concern that the |ayers of
sanctions or certifications mght curb a person’s natural desire
to hel p.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that is not the intent, and offered to
clarify that in HB 320. He suggested that perhaps a letter of
intent could help so that when regulations are witten, the

regulations will not prohibit the public from engaging in search
efforts.

3:49: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN noted that the search and rescue
volunteers are generally pretty well trained. He said the
volunteers learn to avoid problens, |ike being involved in an

aval anche thenselves, but inquired as to how many clains have
been filed in the last 20 years by search and rescue vol unteers.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER answered that he was aware of only two
i nstances of clains, although there may be nore.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN explained, to keep this in perspective,
that there are relatively few instances in which search and
rescue volunteers are injured.

3:50: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to whether the bill included
recovery efforts because those efforts can sonetinmes be nore
dangerous than rescue operations.

MR. PAW.OASKI answered that when coverage should be triggered is
part of the ongoing discussions wth DPS. He said that AS
18. 60. 120, gives the DPS comm ssioner the authority to conduct
search and rescue and recovery, but that the coverage should be
linked to the conm ssioner’s decision when search and rescue
efforts actually becone a search and rescue operation.

3:52: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked about the genesis of the bill.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- January 28, 2008



MR. PAW.OWSKI answered that a constituent, who is a nenber of
the ASARA, asked that the state provide workers’ conpensation
for volunteer search and rescue workers.

3:52:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX inquired as to how HB 320 would affect a
firefighter, who works for a nunicipality as a paid firefighter,
who also volunteers with a search and rescue organization
outside the nunicipality during his off-duty hours. She then
requested clarification of the level of wages to which the
vol unteer would be entitled if he were injured.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER answered that the bill sets up conpensation
based on the gross earnings of a medical technician in the city
or village nearest to the |ocation of the rescue m ssion.

CHAIR OLSON added that the person would receive full nedical
benefits and sone conpensation, but that currently the vol unteer
woul d not be entitled to any conpensati on.

3:54:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO rel ated that he once worked as an Anchorage
firefighter, but that MOA prohibited its enployees from
volunteering in another |ocation because MOA did not want to
train firefighters and Ilose the training invested in the

i ndi vi dual . He added that there is often a nmutual response
agreenent between different areas that allow for reciprocity and
nmut ual response bet ween t he firefighter or gani zati ons.

Therefore, those individuals working in areas wth which there
were reciprocal organizations would be considered on-duty for
t he purpose of workers’ conpensation and injury.

3:56: 01 PM

RCDNEY DI AL, Li eutenant Deputy Commander, “A’ Detachnent,
Division of Alaska State Troopers (AST), Departnment of Public
Safety explained that the DPS is sonewhat supportive of the
bill, as anmended, because it renoves the responsibility for DPS
to set qualifications to certify and naintain a registry.
However, DPS believes the coverage should be limted to actua

m ssions and not to training. He expressed concern that there
will be an expense for DPS to pay premuns for workers’

conpensati on coverage, although he was uncertain what the cost
woul d be.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- January 28, 2008



3:57:17 PM

LI EUTENANT DI AL, in response to Representative Gardner, answered
that if DPS is required to provide these services, it wll
result in a substantial fiscal note since it would require
additional staff to create a certification program

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to whether these functions
could be delegated to an existing board or organization that
currently provides simlar services.

LI EUTENANT DI AL said that would have to be discussed with the
conmi ssi oner .

3:58:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned attention to the fiscal note for DPS
and asked whether this funding is all for training or if part of
it would cover workers’ conpensation.

LI EUTENANT DI AL answered that the fiscal note is for personne
costs only and that prem um coverage for workers’ conpensation
is not included in the fiscal note.

3:58:48 PM

CORY AIST, President, Alaska Search and Rescue Association
(ASARA), said that along wth Lieutenant Dial, nobst search and
rescue organi zations efforts would support HB 320 to hel p offset
costs of its volunteers who mght sustain injuries. He said
that nunerous search and rescue operations are carried on -
weekly or daily — and are a joint effort by AST, other agencies,
and a lot of volunteers. He said that with sonme of the changes
HB 320 is noving in the right direction.

4:00:11 PM

REPRESENTATIVE GARDNER inquired as to the certification
provisions of HB 320, and asked whether ASARA currently has a
program to certify volunteers. She asked whether M. Aist
preferred the certification be done under state authority. She
al so asked how many volunteers he estimates would participate
under a proposed state certified program

MR. AIST explained that certification is a difficult issue

because search and rescue organizations are noving away from
certifications to standards. He said a standard includes a |ist

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- January 28, 2008



of criteria that nust be net in order for the volunteer to be
“mssion ready”. Each organi zation throughout the state,
depending on its expertise, creates a standard that its nenbers
must neet to becone active. Therefore, when AST calls a
nountain rescue group, the nountain rescue group nenbers wll
al ready possess specific training and will have net a standard

He noted that the standards vary. From his experience wth AST,
he opined, the troopers have a good understanding of the rescue
organi zations and call on them to supply the volunteers needed
for a particular mssion. He said that whether the AST wants to
nonitor the standards the organizations are adhering to or to
task that function to an association or other group, is worth
consi deri ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER i nqui red as to whet her t he
certification/standard |anguage in HB 320 would change the way
t he ASARA operates or whether it would be an inpedi nent.

MR AIST replied that the word “certification” does upset
vol unt eers because “certification” inplies a degree. If HB 320
were changed to reflect that organizations nust neet certain
standards set by DPS, there would be nore interest by search and
rescue organi zations around the state, he opined.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER inquired as to the turnover in search and
rescue organi zati ons.

MR. Al ST acknow edged that there is quite a bit of turnover, but
pointed out that a core set of people generally respond to a
large majority of the search and rescue operations. However,
when a particular search develops and grows, the professional
vol unteers expand to include spontaneous volunteers, who are
generally people in the comunity who have no training, but who
want to hel p. The trained volunteers oversee the community
vol unteers involved in any operation.

4:04: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS said that he is working with Chair d son
on a steady funding source for the Alaska Fire Standards
Council, and asked whether an organization |ike that one would
help to standardize and broaden out search and rescue
vol unt eers’ training.

MR, AI ST said he was not famliar with that organization, and he
was not sure if ASARA would be part of that training effort.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- January 28, 2008



4:05:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stressed the inportance of the work done by
ASARA, and asked who bears the expense of the specialized
equi pnent, such as a dry suit or clinbing gear. He related it
was his understanding that typically the individual volunteer
pays for the initial equipnent. He asked whether HB 320 would
help in any way to pay for the replacenent equipnent.

MR. AIST agreed that nost individuals pay for their own
equi pnent and pay for their own search and rescue training. As
a dog handler, he relayed that he has had an incredible
relationship with AST on search and rescue operations and has
al ways been treated pr of essi onal | y. He of fered hi s
understanding that AST has a budget for replacenent of search
and rescue equipnment when a volunteer’s equipnment has been
damaged or lost on a mssion. He suggested that Lieutenant Di al
coul d speak to that matter.

MR AIST, in response to a question by Representative Buch,
specified the AST funding would not cover replacenent of rescue
dogs.

4:07:27 PM

CHUCK SPRINGER, Past President, Alaska Search and Rescue
Associ ation (ASARA), stated that he is the past president of the
ASARA, a volunteer nenber of the Anchorage Police Departnment
(APD) auxiliary search team and an observer with the AST HELO

1. He explained that the concept of providing workers’
conpensation is to protect famlies of volunteer rescue workers
in the event that a search and rescue volunteer is hurt. He

expressed concern that in the future there may be an instance in
which a search and rescue volunteer is hurt or killed, and that
a famly could be dramatically and adversely inpacted. He said
that HB 320 could help famlies by providing financial support
in the formof workers’ conpensation benefits.

4:09:17 PM

PAUL LISANKIE, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Wrkers’
Conpensation, Departnent of Labor & Wrkforce Devel opnent, in
response to an earlier question, stated that death benefits are
provided under the W rkers’ Conpensation Act, which would be
part of the benefits paid out in the event a volunteer search
and rescue worker was kill ed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- January 28, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to the amount of the death
benefits.

MR. LI SANKI E expl ained that it depends on the famly status. |If
single, the death benefit is $5,000, with a one-tinme payment to
the second injury fund of $10,000, so long as there are no
surviving children or dependent parents. If the volunteer
search and rescue worker had a spouse and children, the
survivors would receive weekly benefits, roughly the equival ent
of total disability, which could be paid out for a significant
period of tine. However, benefits are cutoff by remarriage or
after 12 years, unless the spouse is of a certain age. He
reiterated that there is not a specific dollar anmount except for
the single person who dies w thout dependants.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to whether there is a federa
benefit.

MR. LISANKIE responded he was not aware of specific federal
benefits available to search and rescue volunteers who are hurt
or killed during rescue m ssions.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he was strongly suspicious that there
is a federal death benefit avail abl e.

4:11:58 PM

CHAIR COLSON announced that public testinony would be held open
on HB 320 and that he did not intend to take action on the bil

t oday. He said he anticipates that the comrttee will have a
committee substitute prepared soon.

4:12: 38 PM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:12 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- January 28, 2008



